
REGIONAL COUNCIL 9 – EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
JULY 22, 2019 

1pm to 2:30 pm 
UVA Research Park, 1001 Research Park Boulevard, Suite #301 Conference Room 

Charlottesville 

AGENDA 

1. Welcome Jim Cheng 

2. Approve Meeting Minutes April 24, 2019 Meeting Jim Cheng 

3. Approve Financials Andy Wade 

4. Vote to Accept Liz Walters, Bingham & Taylor, Ex-Officio Jim Cheng 

5. Task Force Members Jim Cheng 

6. FY2020 Calendar Jim Cheng 

7. Region 9 Growth Plan Update (2019) - Final Draft Approval Jim Cheng 

8. Director Update Shannon Holland 

9. FY2020 Planning Jim Cheng 

10. Other Business Jim Cheng 

11. Adjourn Jim Cheng 

Packet Page 1



Packet Page 2



REGIONAL COUNCIL 9 – EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
APRIL 24, 2019 

9:30 AM to 11:00 AM 
UVA Research Park 

1001 Research Park Boulevard, Suite #301, 
Charlottesville 

MEETING MINUTES 
Attendees 
Executive Committee Members:  Tom Click (Chair), Jim Cheng (Vice Chair), Brian Cole, David Pettit, Andy 
Wade, and Ed Scott 
Absent:   Miles Friedman 
Staff:   Shannon Holland, Helen Cauthen 

1. Welcome
Tom Click called the Executive Committee meeting to order at 9:35 AM. He noted that no members of the
public were present.

2. Consent
a. Approve Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2018

Jim Cheng made a motion to approve the Minutes from the July 16, 2018 Executive Committee
Meeting as presented. David Pettit seconded the motion. The motion carried.

b. Capacity Building Budget FY 2020 DRAFT due to DHCD May 31, 2019
Tom Click opened a discussion on the DRAFT FY2020 Capacity Building Budget and Narrative included
in the packet. He noted that this year a place holder budget for legal and contract services were added
in the FY2020 budget. He noted that salary and fringe benefits include Central Virginia Partnership
staff hours in addition to Shannon’s. Shannon’s budgeted hours will increase from 38 per week to 40
per week. According to a summary prepared by DHCD Region 9 falls in the middle as compared to
other regions as far as Salary/Fringe dollars budgeted.
David Pettit made a motion to recommend the budget as presented to the Council for approval. Jim
Cheng seconded the motion. The motion carried.

c. Region 9 Growth Plan Update due to DHCD August 1, 2019
Tom Click advised that the first Growth Plan update is due to DHCD by August 1st and guidelines have
recently been provided by DHCD. Referring to the draft consultant Timeline and Scope he opened the
project concept up for discussion. He noted that staff indicated there should be about $30,000
remaining in FY2019 Capacity Building Budget and some of that money could go towards obtaining the
services of a consultant. After much discussion, it was decided that a consultancy was the best
approach to produce a meaningful product, considering capacity, timelines, etc.
Brian Cole made a motion to follow procurement procedures to obtain consultant services as
outlined and to authorize a budget for those services for up to $30,000. Jim Cheng seconded the
motion. The motion carried.

d. Procurement Policy Revision - Small Expenditures
Referring to the draft Procurement Policy Revision provided in the packet, Tom Click noted that staff
was recommending the Executive Committee consider adopting the same Small Procurement Policy as
the City of Charlottesville. The policy is available online via the hyperlink in the revised Policy. Under
this policy any purchases under $10,000 would not require competition. Also, Goods and Services
between $10,000 and $100,000 can be solicited by sending out 3 requests for quotes vs an RFP. Helen
Cauthen noted that we should always be clear in solicitations that we are following policies of the GO
Virginia Council, because the Central Virginia Partnership has different procedures and policies.

Packet Page 3



David Pettit made a motion that in order to enable the Council to address time constraints, the 
Council should adopt the Small Purchase Policy as established by the City of Charlottesville and 
solicit services from partners that we trust and believe can do the work for the Growth Plan Update, 
as presented. Jim Cheng seconded the motion. The motion carried.  

e. “Venture Hub” Business Plan RFP Selection & Contract
At the February Meeting, the Council approved the sourcing of proposals for a “Venture Hub” Business
Plan through an RFP Process and approved a budget of up to $50,000. The Council also delegated the
Entrepreneurship Task Force and the Venture Hub Team, led by staff, to solicit and choose a
consultant. If you find the Scoring Summary in your packet, you’ll see that Consultant B, Camoin and
Associates, was selected.
Jim Cheng made a motion to approve the selection and David Pettit seconded the motion. The
motion carried.
Jim Cheng made a motion to approve the Camoin contract, subject to approval by David Pettit, as
legal counsel. Ed Scott seconded the motion. The motion carried.

f. Catalyst Accelerator Program Contract
Tom Click noted that going forward DHCD is issuing single contracts for projects versus a Master
Contract with project addendums, as is the case of all prior project contracts. The Partnerships
attorney has provided edits on behalf of the Partnership and David Pettit has provided edits for the
Council. David Pettit noted that UVA will need to look closely at the stipulated outcomes, etc. to
ensure they are reasonable.
Brian Cole made a motion to approve the Catalyst Accelerator Program contract subject to final
approval by David Pettit, as legal counsel. Andy Wade seconded the motion. The motion carried.

3. Director Update
a. Entrepreneurship Implementation Per-Capita Grant Opportunity

Shannon Holland noted that the PowerPoint slides in the packet provide up to date details on the
opportunity to fund investments in the Region 9 Entrepreneurship Ecosystem by setting aside up to
$300,000 funding from regional Per Capita funds. The funding, if approved by DHCD, would require a
50 cents on the dollar match. DHCD expects that a process must be used to gauge interest and
capacity of entities interested in coordinating or partnering. Shannon Holland recommends that the
Council keep this opportunity top of mind, but wait until after the “Venture Hub” Business Plan report
is published, as it will likely inform the best investment of resources.  After discussion, it was decided
not to recommend setting aside funds now, but to share with the full Council at the May 2 meeting to
ensure it is top of mind and a consideration as FY2020 project funds are disbursed.

b. Nominating Committee
Shannon Holland reminded the members that Council Nominations are due May 15, 2019. There is
one At-Large Seat to be vacated by Elizabeth Smith. Of the four members whose terms are expiring, all
four are interested in serving again including Tom Click, Jim Cheng, Brian Cole, and Leigh Middleditch.
Thus far, there are 3 nominations.

Per the Bylaws, Tom Click, as Chair, is to appoint a Nominating Committee to prepare a slate for the
June 25 Meeting. After discussion, the following members were recommended for that committee:
David Pettit, Ed Scott, Pace Lochte, Patrick Mauney, and Ray Knott.

Shannon Holland shared that due to staff changes at DHCD, policy thought leadership appears to be
shifting. She noted that it is of concern because thus far three projects have been faced with
disallowed match funding sources that were previously approved in the grant application process.
Shannon will follow up with DHCD leadership about these changes and update the Council, as needed.

Dr. Kim Blosser, Lord Fairfax Community College, on behalf of the three community colleges with
Packet Page 4



services in Region 9, is requesting that the Executive Committee consider a Bylaw change that would 
stipulate that all three community colleges have a seat on the Council. Currently, the three community 
colleges are to decide amongst themselves who the two serving members will be. Much discussion 
ensued around issues such as quorum, the need to add an additional private sector member if another 
public sector member is added, size of boards, Bylaws, long term and short terms visions, etc.  

David Pettit made a motion to present three options to the Council for consideration at the May 2 
meeting: 1) Amend the Bylaws to designate one community college per Planning District; 2) Amend 
the Bylaws to add an Ex-Officio seat for a community college president; and 3) leave the Bylaws as 
written. Brian Cole seconded the motion. The motion carried.  

4. Discussion
Driving Agenda for FY 2020

a. Tom Tom Festival Update
Tom Click gave a recap of the Tom Tom events. Those that attended were pleased with the GO Virginia
related events at Tom Tom and were supportive of participating next year.

b. Capacity Building Match Planning
Shannon Holland suggested the Executive Committee keep the possibility that we may, at some point,
be required to provide match dollars for Capacity Building Budgets.

c. How to Drive Projects
Tom Click noted that asking Task Forces to meet more to drive projects and objectives was probably
not realistic. He suggested giving members more action items might accomplish the same objective.

d. Legal services
During the budget discussion, Shannon Holland mentioned that there may be times we need to seek
legal services when Council needs conflict with David Pettit’s many professional responsibilities. David
Pettit stipulated that this line item was not added to pay for his services; he will not charge for his
services.  Shannon clarified that this line item would create another option for obtaining legal services,
as needed.

e. Inter-Regional Projects
Tom Click asked if there were any projects that may develop into Inter-Regional projects. Shannon
Holland noted that the Central Virginia Cybersecurity project and the CvilleBioHub project could both
potentially develop into Inter-Regional projects as the ECB grants come to a close.

5. Other Business
No other business was discussed.

6. Adjourn
Brian Cole made a motion to adjourn at 11:15 AM. Jim Cheng seconded the motion. The motion carried.

Packet Page 5



Packet Page 6



 3:33 PM
 07/11/19
 Accrual Basis

 GO Virginia
 Statement of Financial Position

 As of May 31, 2019
May 31, 19

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings
11200 · GO VA Operating Account - Union 5,457.10

Total Checking/Savings 5,457.10

Accounts Receivable
11000 · Accounts Receivable 90,175.28

Total Accounts Receivable 90,175.28

Total Current Assets 95,632.38
TOTAL ASSETS 95,632.38

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

20002 · Accounts Payable 19,030.46

20004 · Due to CVPED 76,601.92

Total Accounts Payable 95,632.38

Total Current Liabilities 95,632.38

Total Liabilities 95,632.38
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 95,632.38

Packet Page 7



Packet Page 8



 4:06 PM
 07/11/19
 Accrual Basis

 GO Virginia
 Capacity Building - Statement of Income and Expense

 July 2018 through May 2019

Jul '18 - May 19 Budget % of Budget

Income
41520 · State Grants 149,297.12 390,814.72 38.2%

Total Income 149,297.12 390,814.72 38.2%

Expense

51000 · Employee Expenses

Total 51100 · Salaries and Wages 114,036.44 171,132.94 66.64%

Total 51200 · Required payroll related exp. 1,522.88

Total 51300 · Fringe benefits 4,131.29 404.15 1,022.22%

51000 · Employee Expenses - Other 1,339.93

Total 51000 · Employee Expenses 121,030.54 171,537.09 70.56%

52100 · Contracted services

52120 · Accounting Services 3,055.56 6,000.00 50.93%

52150 · Technical support services (IT) 167.05

Total 52100 · Contracted services 3,222.61 6,000.00 53.71%

53000 · Non-personnel related expenses

Total 53100 · Office supplies and services 2,039.55 3,250.00 62.76%

Total 53200 · Facilites and equipment 9,452.53 9,460.00 99.92%

Total 53300 · Travel 1,850.30 2,790.00 66.32%

Total 53400 · Insurance (Non-employee related 37.50

53700 · Meetings and board development 2,805.59 6,480.59 43.29%

53800 · Marketing and Outreach 101.84 11,310.00 0.9%

Total 53000 · Non-personnel related expenses 16,287.31 33,290.59 48.93%

54000 · Program expenses

54400 · Project related expenses

54410 · Planning

51290 · Consulting services 0.00 750.00 0.0%

51280 · Plannning Grant Activites 1,300.00 50,954.00 2.55%

Total 54410 · Planning 1,300.00 51,704.00 2.51%

54420 · Project Reserves 0.00 111,111.00 0.0%

Total 54400 · Project related expenses 1,300.00 162,815.00 0.8%

Total 54000 · Program expenses 1,300.00 162,815.00 0.8%

01250 · General Administration 7,456.66 17,172.04 43.42%

Total Expense 149,297.12 390,814.72 38.2%
Net Income 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Packet Page 9



Packet Page 10



 3:30 PM
 07/11/19
 Accrual Basis

 GO Virginia
 Budget vs. Actual by Project

 July 2018 through May 2019
Adult Beverage CvilleBioHub

(Projects) (Projects)

Jul '18 - May 19 Budget % of Budget Jul '18 - May 19 Budget % of Budget

Income
41520 · State Grants 14,581.83 249,472.00 5.85% 30,328.68 83,540.00 36.3%

Total Income 14,581.83 249,472.00 5.85% 30,328.68 83,540.00 36.3%

Expense

51000 · Employee Expenses 12,060.73 18,479.00 65.27% 20,596.11 52,080.00 39.55%

52100 · Contracted services 3.75 5.06 5,000.00 0.1%

53000 · Non-personnel related expenses 64.99 9,727.51 25,260.00 38.51%

54000 · Program expenses 2,452.36 230,993.00 1.06% 0.00 1,200.00 0.0%

Total Expense 14,581.83 249,472.00 5.85% 30,328.68 83,540.00 36.3%
Net Income 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Packet Page 11



 3:30 PM
 07/11/19
 Accrual Basis

 GO Virginia
 Budget vs. Actual by Project

 July 2018 through May 2019

Income
41520 · State Grants

Total Income

Expense

51000 · Employee Expenses

52100 · Contracted services

53000 · Non-personnel related expenses
54000 · Program expenses

Total Expense
Net Income

Cybersecurity GWC PTEC
(Projects) (Projects)

Jul '18 - May 19 Budget % of Budget Jul '18 - May 19 Budget % of Budget

6,068.70 100,000.00 6.07% 134,316.63 244,300.00 54.98%

6,068.70 100,000.00 6.07% 134,316.63 244,300.00 54.98%

5,972.99 72,350.00 8.26% 795.07

2.57 3.83 18,000.00 0.02%

93.14 77.32

0.00 27,650.00 0.0% 133,440.41 226,300.00 58.97%

6,068.70 100,000.00 6.07% 134,316.63 244,300.00 54.98%
0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Packet Page 12



 3:30 PM
 07/11/19
 Accrual Basis

 GO Virginia
 Budget vs. Actual by Project

 July 2018 through May 2019

Income
41520 · State Grants

Total Income

Expense

51000 · Employee Expenses

52100 · Contracted services

53000 · Non-personnel related expenses
54000 · Program expenses

Total Expense
Net Income

Site Readiness
(Projects) Total Projects

Jul '18 - May 19 Budget % of Budget Jul '18 - May 19 Budget % of Budget

55,760.15 58,675.00 95.03% 241,055.99 735,987.00 32.75%

55,760.15 58,675.00 95.03% 241,055.99 735,987.00 32.75%

505.92 39,930.82 142,909.00 27.94%

1.29 800.00 0.16% 16.50 23,800.00 0.07%

27.94 9,990.90 25,260.00 39.55%

55,225.00 57,875.00 95.42% 191,117.77 544,018.00 35.13%

55,760.15 58,675.00 95.03% 241,055.99 735,987.00 32.75%
0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Packet Page 13



Packet Page 14



Task Force Members 

7.1.2019 

Talent Development 
Ed Dalrymple 

Frank Friedman 
Jan Gullickson 
Paul McCulla 
Liz Walters 

Growing Existing Businesses 
Shelby Bruguiere 

Brian Cole 
Jim Crozier 

Ed Scott 
Ray Knott 

David Pettit 
Felix Sarfo-Kantanka 

Startups/Innovation/Commercialization 
Jim Cheng 

Pace Lochte 
Tom Click 

Miles Friedman 
Kurt Krueger 

Sites 
Andy Wade 

Patrick Mauney 
Chip Boyles 

Tony O’Brien 
Christian Goodwin 

Mansour Azimipour 

Packet Page 15



Packet Page 16



Region 9 
Meetings and Important Dates 

www.GOVirginia9.org  

FY 2020 

RED = Dates are projected based on prior year 

Region 9 
Proposal 
Deadline 

Region 9 
Council Meeting 

9:30 AM to 11:30 AM 

DHCD 
Deadline 

GO Virginia 
Board Meeting 

2019 

September 10 

September 9 October 10 
UVA Research Park November 1 December 10, 2018 

2020 

January 7 Thurs., January 30 
TBD February 7 March 10 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
Thursday, April 16 

March 31 Thurs., April 30 
TBD May 8 June 9 

May 26 Friday, June 19 
Germanna (tent.) August 7 September 8 

September 8 Wed., October 14 
TBD October 30 December 8 

Packet Page 17

http://www.govirginia9.org/


Packet Page 18



FY 2019 Executive Committee Priorities - UPDATE

ISSUE ACTION ITEMS SUCCESSES 
Regional Council 
Drives the 
Agenda 

 In Marketing/Promotion Plan include:
o Constant Contact emails
o Amplify messaging through Council’s Networks,

i.e. Linked-In
o Continue press outreach
o Develop list of all Board approved projects
o Develop a master list of potential partners
o Develop a list of Chamber Presidents

 LinkedIn page has almost 100 followers

 Largest linked in post – Catalyst Birthstone – had over 1,000 likes

 20 articles on regional projects, posted on website and promoted
via LinkedIn

 All projects to date have been driven by Council members or
contacts

 Developed Growth Plan Update In-house

Get Local 
Government 
more Integrated 

 Staff will present to localities

 Provide Locality Contact Lists to Council

 Invite Del. Steve Landes, GO Virginia Board
Member, to speak at a Council Meeting

 Continue inviting legislators to Council Meetings

 Met with all locality administrators + economic development offices

 Charlottesville has set aside a budget of GO Virginia dollars

 Albemarle and Charlottesville and UVA collaborating in
unprecedented ways

Generate 
Innovation and 
Entrepreneurship 
Ecosystem 
Framework 
Project for 
Region 9 Pipeline 

 Consider convening a regional group on the topic

 Identify  contacts by county for task force members
to contact

 Develop a Master List of Contacts in this sector

 Catalyst project approved

 Young Entre. Program Resource project approved

 “Venture Hub” Business Plan Planning Grant

 TEConomy Assessment completed 12/18

 With Partnership, rural localities have toured Fauquier county
business resources centers; met with Sean Carr, Batten Institute, in
addition to other meetings

 Sponsored TomTom activities

 Plan to review per capita set aside in Fall, after “Venture Hub” plan
complete

Generate 
Projects 
targeting 
Business & 
Financial Services 
in Region  9  

 Staff to set up meeting with key sector leaders  n/a

Identify next 
generation of 
leadership 

 Standing Nominating Committee can lead this
initiative

 First meeting to be set later in FY 2019

 More diversity on Executive Committee

 Nominating Committee focused on diversity, target industries, and
locality engagement

Packet Page 19


	Executive Committee Agenda -July 22.2019
	FY 2019 Priorities 7.16.2018 Update for Exec Committee Planning Meeting 
	FY 2020 Region 9 Meetings and Important Dates FINAL  locations TBD for Executive Comm 7.11.2019
	FY 2020 Region 9 Meetings and Important Dates
	GO Virginia Executive Committee Minutes - April 24 2019 DRAFT v2 with edits
	Task Force Members 7.1.2019
	GO Virginia_Financial Statements_1905 for Packet.pdf
	Projects
	Capacity Building
	Balance Sheet
	GO Virginia_Capacity Bldg Financial Statements_1905 - 2.pdf
	Sheet1


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



